
MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

September 6, 2023 
2:00 p.m. 

Sweetwater County Commissioner Meeting Room – Green River, Wyoming 

 

 
    

AGENDA 
 

I. Call to Order Barbara Sowada 

 A.  Roll Call  

B. Pledge of Allegiance   

C. Mission and Vision  Kandi Pendleton 

D. Mission Moment Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer 

II. Agenda (For Action)  Barbara Sowada 

III. Minutes (For Action) Barbara Sowada 

IV. Community Communication  Barbara Sowada 

V. Old Business Barbara Sowada 

A. Employee Policies (Remains under review/development, no request for action)  

1. Employee Policy – Non-Discrimination and Anti-Harassment 

B. Board Policy–BOT - Senior Leadership Plan: Filling CEO Absences & Vacancies; 

Filling Senior Leader Absences & Vacancies; Identifying & Developing 

Internal Senior Leaders (For Action) Barbara Sowada 

C. Board Policy – Executive Compensation Policy (For Discussion) Barbara Sowada 

D. Health Equity Plan (For Action) Kara Jackson, Director of 

Quality Accreditation, Patient Safety, & Risk 

E. FY24 Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Priorities (For Action) Kara Jackson 

  

VI. New Business (Review and Questions/Comments) Barbara Sowada 

A. CEO Evaluation Principles & Procedure, 8/21              Barbara Sowada 

and CEO Evaluation Policy, 3/22 (For Action) 

VII. Chief Executive Officer Report  Irene Richardson 

VIII.  Committee Reports 

A. Quality Committee Kandi Pendleton 

B. Human Resources Committee  Kandi Pendleton 

C. Finance & Audit Committee         Marty Kelsey 

1. Capital Expenditure Requests (For Action) 

2. Information Technology Report 

3. Bad Debt (For Action) 

4. Finance & Audit Committee Meeting Information 

D. Building & Grounds Committee Marty Kelsey 

E. Foundation Board Craig Rood 

F. Compliance Committee Kandi Pendleton 

1/136



MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

September 6, 2023 
2:00 p.m. 

Sweetwater County Commissioner Meeting Room – Green River, Wyoming 

 

 
    

AGENDA 
 

G. Governance Committee Barbara Sowada 

H. Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee Barbara Sowada 

I. Joint Conference Committee Barbara Sowada 

IX. Contract Review               Irene Richardson 

A. Contracts Approved by CEO since Last Board Meeting (For Your Information) 

1. Wolters Kluwer UpToDate Provider E-Library 

X. Board Education  Barbara Sowada 

 A.  Veralon (formerly Iprotean) Quality Essentials Parts 1-3 (For Discussion) 

XI. Medical Staff Report Kerry Downs, Director of Medical Staff Services 

XII. Good of the Order           Barbara Sowada 

XIII. Executive Session (W.S. §16-4-405(a)(ix)) Barbara Sowada 

XIV. Action Following Executive Session Barbara Sowada 

A. Request for Privileges (For Action) 

XV. Adjourn Barbara Sowada 

2/136



OUR MISSIONOUR MISSION  

Compassionate care for 

every life we touch. 

OUR VISIONOUR VISION  

To be our community’s trusted 

healthcare leader. 

OUR VALUESOUR VALUES  

Be Kind 

Be Respectful 

Be Accountable 

Work Collaboratively 

Embrace Excellence 

 

OUR STRATEGIESOUR STRATEGIES  

Patient Experience 

Quality & Safety 

Workplace Experience 

Growth, Opportunity & Community 

Financial Stewardship 

3/136



 

MINUTES FROM THE REGULAR MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

August 2, 2023 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in regular session on 

August 2, 2023, at 2:00 p.m. with Dr. Barbara Sowada, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Dr. Sowada welcomed everyone and called the meeting to order. 

 

Dr. Sowada requested a roll call and announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees were 

present: Mr. Marty Kelsey, Ms. Kandi Pendleton, Mr. Craig Rood, and Dr. Barbara Sowada.  

 

Officially present during the meeting: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Dr. Brianne 

Crofts, Medical Staff President; and Mr. Geoff Phillips, Legal Counsel. 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Dr. Sowada led the attendees in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

Our Mission and Vision 

 

Mr. Kelsey read aloud the mission and vision statements.  

 

Mission Moment 

 

Dr. Sowada said she attended the Patient and Family Advisory Council celebratory dinner. She 

thanked Ms. Richardson and everyone involved in hosting the event. Dr. Sowada said it was 

wonderful to hear about the amazing things happening at the Hospital over the past year. She said 

it was a wonderful opportunity to hear the two-way community from the community. Dr. Sowada 

said things at the Hospital have changed due to the insight shared from our patients and guests. 

Ms. Richardson said the group celebrated four years together. Dr. Sowada said it is a wonderful 

way to bring the voices of our patients into the Hospital. She said the Foundation and Board of 

Trustees are other good avenues to bring that input. 

 

AGENDA 

 

Dr. Sowada proposed four agenda changes: 1) Table the Executive Compensation Policy, 2) 

Executive Session to begin at the start of the meeting instead of the end, 3) Health Equity Plan for 

review rather for action, 4) Review of a document from the Board of County Commissioners. The 

motion to approve the amended agenda as outlined by Dr. Sowada was made by Mr. Kelsey; 

second by Ms. Pendleton. Motion carried.   

 

  

4/136



 

 

Minutes of the August 2, 2023, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 2 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

The motion to go into executive session at 2:13 p.m. was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Mr. 

Rood. Motion carried.  

 

RECONVENE INTO REGULAR SESSION 
 

The motion to leave executive session and return to regular session at 4:03 p.m. was made by Ms. 

Pendleton; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

ACTION FOLLOWING EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 

Approval of Privileges 
 

The motion to approve the list of clinical privileges and granting appointments to the Medical Staff 

as reviewed in executive session was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Mr. Rood. Motion carried. 

Credentials Committee Recommendations to the Board of Trustees for Granting Clinical 

Privileges and Granting Appointment to the Medical Staff from July 11, 2023 

1. Initial Appointment to Active Staff (2 year) 

 Dr. Ahmad Bashirimoghaddam, Hospitalist 

 Dr. Brian Moon, Anesthesia 

 Dr. Claudia Tuffanelli-Bouvier, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

 Dr. Helen Palatinus, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

2. Initial Appointment to Associate Staff (1 year) 

 Dr. Ram Narayan, Neurology 

 Dr. May Poundstone, Hospitalist and Pediatrics 

 Dr. Kyle Hoffman, General Surgery 

3. Initial Appointment to Non-Physician Provider (1 year) 

 Michal Zanetti-Love, Clinical Social Work (SWCS) 

4. Reappointment to Active Staff (2 year) 

 Dr. Benjamin Jensen, Anesthesia 

 Dr. Philip Craven, Emergency Medicine (U of U) 

 Dr. Brianne Crofts, General Surgery  

5. Reappointment to Consulting Staff (2 years) 

 Dr. Raminder Nirula, Tele ICU (U of U) 

 Dr. Kristi Sobota, Tele Radiology (VRC) 

 Dr. Douglas Hughes, Tele Radiology (VRC) 

6. New Business 

 Dr. John Iliya, Modification of Privileges 

 Dr. Augusto Jamias, Robotic Surgery Privileges 

 

The motion to approve the contracts reviewed in executive session and authorize the CEO to sign 

was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Mr. Kelsey. Motion carried.  

 

The motion to approve the CEO contract as discussed in executive session and authorize the 

President to sign was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Mr. Rood. Motion carried.  

5/136



 

 

Minutes of the August 2, 2023, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 3 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

The motion to approve the minutes of the July 5, 2023, regular meeting as presented was made by 

Ms. Pendleton; second by Mr. Rood. Motion carried.   

 

COMMUNITY COMMUNICATION 

There were no comments.  

 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

Board Policy – Senior Leadership Plan: Filling CEO Absences & Vacancies; Filling Senior 

Leader Absences & Vacancies; Identifying & Developing Internal Senior Leaders 

 

Dr. Sowada thanked Mr. Kelsey for his comments and said this is not a brand-new policy, but a 

revision so this is for review. Mr. Kelsey said this goes back to 2017 when we last looked at it. He 

said the substance of the policy has not changed a lot although the title was changed substantially 

and the format was changed significantly. He said it is tough to compare with the redline, strike-

thru previous version because the format changed so much. Mr. Kelsey suggested including the 

previous policy with this update for the next read. Mr. Phillips commented that it was good work 

and it is a much better policy.  

 

Performance Improvement and Patient Safety (PIPS) Plan 

 

Dr. Sowada reminded everyone about the Board doing their due diligence by fully reviewing the 

Plan during the approval process. She thanked staff for the thorough and comprehensive plan. The 

motion to approve the PIPS Plan as written was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Ms. Pendleton. 

Motion carried.  

 

Infection Control Plan and Annual Evaluation 

 

Dr. Sowada said this is part of the overall quality of the Hospital. The motion to approve the Plan 

and Evaluation as written was made by Ms. Pendleton; second by Mr. Rood. Motion carried.  

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Health Equity Plan 

 

Dr. Sowada said this is a new document and a new requirement. Ms. Kara Jackson, Director of 

Quality, Accreditation, Patient Safety, and Risk, said the Plan reviews our organization’s efforts 

to address health equity. It identifies definitions and responsibilities, outlines how we will identify 

disparities in our healthcare population, and then how we will address those things following 

identification. Ms. Jackson said the Plan outlines how we will monitor. She said we will keep staff 

and the Board informed. We have a charter that outlines membership. Ms. Jackson said this work 

has been around in the quality area for several years. The Joint Commission came out with 

standards this year and CMS also came out with standards that will be required next year. Ms. 

Jackson said we are looking at all data and stratifying. She said that from that we can choose an 

6/136



 

 

Minutes of the August 2, 2023, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 4 

area and then develop a plan. Dr. Sowada asked about the value of the cost to implement. Ms. 

Jackson said we will whittle down the group size and have a core group moving forward. She said 

the diversity of the Committee is great and engagement is very good.  

 

FY24 PIPS Priorities 

 

Ms. Jackson provided an overall review. She said we have requirements that we identify 

improvement projects. Our consultant recommended two to three projects. Ms. Jackson said we 

ask the Medical Staff, our staff, and Leadership. We bring ideas back and use tools to identify the 

selections. The PIPS Committee reviews. Ms. Jackson said the projects selected are Financial 

Performance, Patient Experience, and Medical Reconciliation and Medication List Updates. Dr. 

Sowada noted the Board is being asked to approve the plan without specific goals. Dr. Kari 

Quickenden, Chief Clinical Officer, said there are some variables and we are not waiting to move 

forward on the work. She said we need to determine what is feasible. Mr. Kelsey said he would 

like to see some tighter deadlines. Dr. Quickenden said we will work on the plan and bring it back 

to the Board for review. 

 

September Board Meeting 

 

Dr. Sowada said the Board has historically met in Green River annually. She reported the County 

Commissioners have offered us their meeting room for the September meeting. Dr. Crofts asked 

to be excused due to work requirements.  

 

Credentials Committee 

 

Dr. Crofts reviewed the updated forms. The motion to approve the Non-Physician Provider 

Privilege Form Outpatient Medicine, Meeting Documentation Form, and Privilege Specific FPPE 

Form as presented was made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Mr. Rood. Motion carried. 

 

Document from County Commissioners  

 

Dr. Sowada presented copies of a budget agreement document received immediately prior to the 

meeting from the County Commissioners. Ms. Richardson said Commissioner Slaughter told her 

that this is a new process of distributing funds and they would like the document signed by August 

15. Mr. Phillips said he cannot recommend we sign the document as presented. He said there are 

some items for review with the County Attorney’s office and our Commissioner Liaison. Mr. 

Phillips and Ms. Richardson will work on that and report back to the Trustees. 

 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER REPORT 

 

Ms. Richardson provided an update on person-centered care initiatives. She and Ms. Tami Love, 

Chief Financial Officer, met with Mr. Rood to provide Trustee orientation. Ms. Pendleton joined 

them for a tour of the Hospital. Ms. Richardson reported the internal critical access designation 

team continues work on the application process and we are in the final review for the state 

application. The Department of Rural Health will review, make a recommendation, and then we 

will apply for licensure. Ms. Carolyn St. Charles with HealthTech is assisting us and will come 

onsite for a mock survey. She is also helping us design a swing bed program. Ms. Richardson 

7/136



 

 

Minutes of the August 2, 2023, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 5 

expressed appreciation to the Board of County Commissioners for the time on their agenda in July 

to provide more details for our annual report. She noted the common theme of the report with all 

department reports tying to our mission, vision, values, and strategic plan. Ms. Richardson 

announced we received an award for being the number one hospital in Wyoming for social 

responsibility by the Lown Institute. Ms. Richardson said it was a nice recognition for the staff 

and physicians for their great work. She said we are preparing for our financial onsite audit by 

CliftonLarsenAllen next week. We are in the window of our Joint Commission survey. Ms. 

Richardson said we are planning an onsite visit by Pediatrician recruits in September and 

November. We are changing our annual picnic to a Fall Festival on October 19. The Wyoming 

Hospital Association annual meeting will be August 30 and 31 in Cheyenne. Ms. Richardson is 

attending the American Hospital Association regional meeting in Washington D.C. October 1-3. 

Ms. Richardson thanked Dr. John Iliya and Dr. Jean Stachon for their service to our community 

over the years. She said we wish them the best in the future. Ms. Richardson gave a shout out to 

Ms. Pendleton for planning a wonderful county fair event. She said we are sponsoring the Friday 

night concert. Ms. Richardson congratulated Mr. Taylor Jones on becoming our new County 

Commissioner. She thanked him for his years of service. She thanked staff and physicians for the 

great work they are doing. She thanked the Board for all the work they are doing and all the support 

they give us. Mr. Kelsey said it would be fitting to invite Mr. Jones to an upcoming meeting to 

recognize him.  

 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Quality Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada noted MHSC was awarded three stars by CMS. She thanked everyone for their hard 

work. Dr. Quickenden said we have a lot of good work going on and every department is engaged 

in improvement projects.  

 

Human Resources Committee 

 

Ms. Pendleton noted turnover numbers have improved.  

 

Finance and Audit Committee 

 

Mr. Kelsey said Dr. Sowada has changed him with organizing the efforts to review and update all 

Committee Charters. He said we must review every three years and it is a requirement to not only 

review but approve. Mr. Kelsey said the Finance and Audit Committee did not meet in July. He 

noted self-pay plan information is included in the meeting packet. He said he went back through 

information over the past 18 months and said this is the highest amount of bad debt in that 

timeframe, maybe ever. Mr. Ron Cheese, Director of Patient Financial Services, said we have a 

large population of self-pay individuals who cannot or do not pay their bills. He said the largest 

group is people who have plans with high deductibles. They are falling back on the Hospital as 

bad debt. He is also seeing some impact from Medicare Advantage plans. Mr. Kelsey said he thinks  

we will see a number of tidal wave changes coming and it will have a big impact on us. Dr. Sowada 

said the world of healthcare is turbulent. The motion to approve the bad debt of $1,681,078.10 as 

presented was made by Mr. Kelsey, second by Ms. Pendleton. Motion carried. Dr. Sowada said 

she asked Ms. Love to provide a quick update on financials. Ms. Love said the auditors will be 

here next week. She reviewed preliminary numbers for June and said it was a high revenue month. 

8/136



 

 

Minutes of the August 2, 2023, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 6 

She said we have 101 average days of cash on hand. The average days in A/R is 54. Ms. Love said 

we see higher expenses in June and the largest items include group health, contract labor, drugs, 

and supplies.  

 

Building and Grounds 

 

Mr. Kelsey said the information is in the meeting packet. 

 

Foundation 

 

Mr. Rood reminded everyone Casino Night is August 26. 

 

Compliance Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada excused Ms. Pendleton from the meeting at 5:00 PM and Dr. Sowada reported on her 

behalf that the Committee information is in the meeting packet. 

 

Governance Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the information is in the meeting packet.  

 

Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the Committee did not meet. 

 

Joint Conference Committee 

 

Dr. Sowada said the Committee has not met.  

 

CONTRACT REVIEW 

 

Consent Agenda 

 

The motion to approve the True North Statement of Work and UL Solutions – UL Verification 

Services documents as presented and authorize the CEO to sign was made by Mr. Kelsey; second 

by Mr. Rood. Motion carried. 

 

BOARD EDUCATION 

 

The Trustees shared feedback on the Veralon Credentialing and Privileging education videos.  

  

MEDICAL STAFF REPORT 

 

Dr. Crofts thanked the Board and the Foundation for providing the DaVinci robot. She said she is 

often the skeptic but she has used it and it is amazing. She said it is “the coolest thing!” Dr. Crofts 

said she is excited about it and thinks it will benefit the patient. She said she knows the technology 

is expensive but it makes a difference. She said the General Medical Staff will meet in September. 

9/136



 

 

Minutes of the August 2, 2023, Board of Trustees Meeting 

Page 7 

Dr. Sowada thanked Dr. Crofts for sharing her enthusiasm and expressed appreciation to the staff 

in the OR. Dr. Sowada noted the Hospital has always been able to have contemporary equipment, 

foresight, planning ahead, and a good place to receive care. Ms. Richardson said we need to keep 

investing back into the Hospital . She said it is wonderful we could bring the robot here.   

 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 

In replacing the vacant Trustee position, Dr. Sowada said the thought is the County Commissioners 

will take some time before appointing someone. The Board discussed not filling the vacant Vice 

President position at the current time. Mr. Phillips said policies say the position must be filled 

within 60 days. Dr. Sowada said she will move to the Quality Committee and Mr. Rood will serve 

on the Finance and Audit Committee. Dr. Sowada the Board will move back to doing a monthly 

review for the CEO.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 5:33 p.m.   

      

    

  ______________________________________  

  Dr. Barbara Sowada, President 

Attest: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Ms. Kandi Pendleton, Secretary 

10/136



 

MINUTES FROM THE SPECIAL MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

August 14, 2023 
 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in a special meeting via Zoom 

on August 14, 2023, at 8:00 a.m. with Dr. Barbara Sowada, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Dr. Sowada called the meeting to order and announced there was a quorum. The following Trustees were 

present online at the call to order: Mr. Marty Kelsey, Ms. Kandi Pendleton, Mr. Craig Rood, and Dr. 

Barbara Sowada.  

 

Officially present during the meeting: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer; Mr. Geoff 

Phillips, Legal Counsel; Mr. Robb Slaughter, County Commissioner; and Mr. Taylor Jones, County 

Commissioner. 

 

2023 BUDGET AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE SWEETWATER COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

AND THE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

 

Ms. Richardson said Commissioner Slaughter approached us with an agreement about the way the 

County would pay the component units and they wanted it signed by their August 15 meeting. We looked 

at the agreement and feel we are a little bit different in the way we do things because we are governed 

by statute. We had several meetings to make sure we can still abide by the statute and do what the 

Commissioners want to do moving forward. Mr. Phillips drafted a Memorandum of Understanding 

(MOU) and it appears it will accomplish what we need to do regarding maintenance funds and Title 25 

funds. It is an annual agreement and we will need to bring this forward each year. Mr. Phillips thanked 

Commissioners Slaughter and Jones for coming together with us and working toward a compromise. He 

expressed appreciation to Dr. Sowada for her leadership. Mr. Phillips said Ms. Richardson and Ms. Tami 

Love, Chief Financial Officer, were instrumental in putting this together. Commissioner Slaughter said 

this is not on the August 15 agenda. There was discussion of the MOU and a letter from Mr. Phillips. 

Commissioner Slaughter said he thinks the MOU addresses the issues we have been looking at and said 

he will review with Mr. John DeLeon with the County Attorney’s office. It was noted if Title 25 costs 

are higher than planned, the Hospital could come to the Commissioners with an amendment, which is 

the same process we have been following. The motion to approve the 2023-2024 MOU as presented was 

made by Mr. Kelsey; second by Ms. Pendleton. Motion carried.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 8:32 a.m.   

      

   

  ______________________________________  

  Dr. Barbara Sowada, President 

Attest: 

 

_____________________________________ 

Ms. Kandi Pendleton, Secretary 

11/136



 

MINUTES FROM THE SPECIAL WORKSHOP MEETING 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

August 25, 2023 
 

 

The Board of Trustees of Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County met in a special workshop 

meeting at Santa Fe Trail in Rock Springs, Wyoming, on August 25, 2023, at 8:00 a.m. with Dr. 

Barbara Sowada, President, presiding. 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

 

Dr. Sowada called the meeting to order. The following Trustees were present: Mr. Marty Kelsey, 

Ms. Kandi Pendleton, Mr. Craig Rood, and Dr. Barbara Sowada.  

 

Officially present during the meeting: Ms. Irene Richardson, Chief Executive Officer. 

 

PERSONNEL MATTERS DISCUSSION 

 

The sole item on the agenda for the meeting was an executive session to discuss personnel matters 

considered confidential by law pursuant to W.S. §16-4-405(a)(ix). 

 

ADJOURNMENT 
 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 12:00 p.m.  

 

      

    

  ______________________________________  

  Dr. Barbara Sowada, President 

Attest: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Ms. Kandi Pendleton, Secretary 

 

12/136



13/136



DRAFT

Status Draft PolicyStat ID 14074422 

Approved N/A 

Review Due N/A 

Document 
Area 

Board of 
Trustees 

BOT - Senior Leadership Plan: Filling CEO Absences & 
Vacancies; Filling Senior Leader Absences & Vacancies; 

Identifying & Developing Internal Senior Leaders 

       Board of Trustees 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE: 

DEFINITIONS 

It is important that the Hospital have in place guidelines and a process for filling a short or long term 
absence of the CEO or filling the vacancy when the CEO leaves the position permanently. This is also true 
for other senior leadership positions. This policy has two major purposes: 
(1) To help the Hospital prepare for CEO or other Senior Leadership absences and permanent departures 
by bringing order at a time of potential turmoil, confusion, and high stress; 
(2) Identifying and developing skills and talent by mentoring promising candidates employed by the 
Hospital with the potential to fill Senior Leadership positions on a temporary or permanent basis. 

Acting:            Substitutes during an absence of a Senior Leader 

Interim:           Fills the role of a Senior Leader when the Leader has departed and a permanent 
replacement has yet to be appointed 

Long Term Absence:  One that is expected to last three consecutive months or more 

Short Term Absence: One that is expected to last more than one month, but less than three consecutive 
months 

BOT - Senior Leadership Plan: Filling CEO Absences & Vacancies; Filling Senior Leader Absences & Vacancies; Identifying

& Developing Internal Senior Leaders. Retrieved 07/2023. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/

14074422/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 1 of 5

14/136



DRAFT

TEXT: 
I. ABSENCES OR PERMANENT DEPARTURE OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CE0) 

A. Absences (Long or Short Term) 

1. In the event of an unplanned absence of the CEO, the Administrator on Call 
(AOC) shall immediately inform the Board President or designee of the 
absence. As soon as it is feasible, the Board President or designee shall 
convene a meeting of the Board of Trustees (Board) to affirm the 
procedures prescribed in this policy.  The Board may make modifications 
as necessary. If possible, the Board shall consult with the CEO prior to 
appointing an Acting CEO. 

2. In the event of a planned absence of the CEO, the Board shall meet to 
discuss the matter, consult with the CEO, and appoint an Acting CEO. 

3. Normally, one of the following Senior Leaders will be appointed Acting 
CEO; however, the appointment shall be made at the discretion of the 
Board. 

a. Chief Nursing Officer 

b. Chief Financial Officer 

c. Chief Clinical Officer 

4. The decision about when the absent CEO returns to Hospital duties shall 
be determined by the Board President in conjunction with the absent CEO, 
and approved by the Board. They shall determine a mutually agreed-upon 
schedule and start date. A reduced work schedule for a short period of 
time may be allowed with the intention of returning to a full time 
commitment. 

B. Permanent Departure 

1. Should the CEO leave Hospital employment for any reason, the Board shall 
meet as soon as feasible after becoming aware of the departure to 
discuss the departure, determine a transition plan, and the next steps to 
take. The Board may, over time, take any one or more of the following 
actions: 

a. Appoint a permanent replacement 

b. Appoint an interim CEO 

c. Appoint a search committee 

d. Retain a consultant to assist with recruiting, interviewing, and 
selecting a replacement 

C. Authority and Compensation of the Acting or Interim CEO; Appointment and 
Compensation of a Permanent CEO 

1. The individual appointed as an Acting or Interim CEO shall have full 
authority for decision making and independent action as a permanent 

BOT - Senior Leadership Plan: Filling CEO Absences & Vacancies; Filling Senior Leader Absences & Vacancies; Identifying

& Developing Internal Senior Leaders. Retrieved 07/2023. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/

14074422/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 2 of 5

15/136



DRAFT

CEO. 

2. The salary of the Acting or Interim CEO shall be recommended by the 
Board Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee and approved by 
the Board. 

3. The appointment and compensation of a permanent CEO shall be made in 
accordance with prevailing Hospital policies. 

D. Board Oversight 

1. The Board member(s) responsible for monitoring the work of the Acting or 
Interim CEO shall be members of the Board Executive Oversight and 
Compensation Committee. 

2. Board members on the Executive Oversight and Compensation Committee 
should be sensitive to the special support needs of the Acting or Interim 
CEO in the temporary leadership role. If the Acting or Interim CEO is 
appointed internally from the ranks of the Senior Leaders, it is recognized 
that it may not be reasonable to expect the Acting or Interim CEO to 
perform the duties of both positions for longer than three (3) months. 
Consequently, in this situation, it may be necessary to fill the Senior 
Leadership position temporarily until the permanent CEO returns to work 
or until a new permanent CEO is hired. 

E. Communication Plan 

1. If prior communication has not occurred, immediately upon transferring 
the responsibilities to the Acting CEO, Interim CEO, or to the permanent 
replacement, the Board President shall notify Hospital employees, medical 
providers, Foundation Board members, key volunteers, and the CEO of the 
University of Utah Healthcare System of the delegation of authority. The 
Board President shall also work with appropriate Hospital staff to prepare 
a local press release. 

2. The Acting CEO, Interim CEO, or the permanent replacement shall 
communicate the temporary or permanent leadership change to state 
licensing agencies and other constituent groups. 

II. ABSENCES OR PERMANENT DEPARTURE OF OTHER SENIOR LEADERS 

A. Absences (Long or Short Term) 

1. In the event of an absence of a Senior Leader below the level of the CEO, 
long or short term, planned or unplanned, the CEO may, at his or her 
discretion, appoint an Acting replacement in consultation with the 
Executive Oversight & Compensation Committee. 

2. The decision about when the absent Senior Leader returns to Hospital 
duties shall be determined by the CEO in conjunction with the absent 
Senior Leader. They shall determine a mutually agreed upon schedule and 
start date. A reduced work schedule for a short period of time may be 
allowed with the intention of returning to a full time commitment. 

BOT - Senior Leadership Plan: Filling CEO Absences & Vacancies; Filling Senior Leader Absences & Vacancies; Identifying

& Developing Internal Senior Leaders. Retrieved 07/2023. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/

14074422/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 3 of 5

16/136



DRAFT

B. Permanent Departure 

1. If the Senior Leader’s departure is permanent, the CEO shall, upon 
consultation with the Executive Oversight & Compensation Committee, 
execute a transition plan. The transition plan could, over time, include any 
one or more of the following actions: 

a. The appointment of a permanent Senior Leader 

b. The appointment of an interim Senior Leader 

c. The appointment of a search committee 

d. The retention of a consultant to assist with recruiting, 
interviewing, and selecting a replacement 

C. Authority and Compensation of the Acting or Interim Senior Leader; Appointment 
and Compensation of a Permanent Senior Leader 

1. The individual appointed as the Acting or Interim Senior Leader shall have 
full authority for decision making and independent action as the 
permanent Senior Leader. 

2. The salary of the Acting or Interim Senior Leader shall be determined by 
the CEO in consultation with the Executive Oversight & Compensation 
Committee and approved by the Board. 

3. The appointment and compensation of a permanent Senior Leader shall 
be made in accordance with prevailing Hospital policies. 

D. Communications Plan 

1. The CEO shall communicate the leadership change with all necessary 
constituents. 

III. IDENTIFYING AND DEVELOPING INTERNAL SKILLS & TALENT 

A. Leadership plays an essential role in the success of the Hospital. Change in Senior 
Leadership positions is inevitable requiring advanced preparation and planning. One 
of the purposes of this policy is to help the Hospital prepare for Senior Leadership 
position absences and departures. 

B. To implement this objective, members of the Senior Leadership team should actively 
identify and mentor potential candidates through a deliberative interactive process 
to foster and develop the traits needed in a Senior Leader. Some of the key traits 
important in a great leader include: 

1. Vision…being a strategic thinker 

2. Courage…the ability to take reasonable risks to achieve worthwhile goals 

3. Integrity…the desire to be honest and to value ethical & moral principles 

4. Humility…the ability to contain one’s ego and to acknowledge mistakes 

5. Focus…the ability to maintain a positive focus at work and in life 

6. The desire to continually improve 

7. The ability to understand that leaders are only as strong as their team and 

BOT - Senior Leadership Plan: Filling CEO Absences & Vacancies; Filling Senior Leader Absences & Vacancies; Identifying

& Developing Internal Senior Leaders. Retrieved 07/2023. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/

14074422/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 4 of 5

17/136



DRAFTApproval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

team members 

8. Interest in leading by example 

9. The ability to effectively motivate others 

10. Capacity to work at a high energy level 

11. Ability to endure challenging times without undue discouragement 

12. Ability to embrace change 

13. Ability to remain calm, cool and resilient in the face of conflict and 
criticism 

C. Senior Leadership should work together, in a coordinated way, to proactively seek 
out individuals employed by the Hospital with great leadership potential and provide 
appropriate and meaningful leadership training opportunities for them throughout 
the year. 

Formerly: Hospital Policy - Succession/Talent management Plan - Senior 
Leadership Plan 

Board of Trustees Approval: 

BOT - Senior Leadership Plan: Filling CEO Absences & Vacancies; Filling Senior Leader Absences & Vacancies; Identifying

& Developing Internal Senior Leaders. Retrieved 07/2023. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/

14074422/. Copyright © 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County

Page 5 of 5

18/136



19/136



20/136



21/136



22/136



 

ORIENTATION MEMO 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Date: September 6th, 2023   
 
Topic for Old & New Business Items:  Health Equity Plan  
 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

 _____  Revision 
 ___X___ New 
 
Brief Senior Leadership Comments: The Health Equity Plan has been developed to outline the 

organizations’ plan for addressing healthcare disparities and to ensure we remain compliant with CMS 
and TJC Standards. Kari Quickenden, CCO 
 

 Board Committee Action:  
Approved by Quality Committee of the Board  
 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

     ______   For Review Only 
 ___X__   For Board Action  
 
Legal Counsel Review: 

 ___N/A_ In House Comments: 
 ___N/A_ Board  Comments: 
 
Senior Leadership Recommendation: 
Recommendation for approval. Irene Richardson, CEO and Kari Quickenden, CCO 

23/136



DRAFT

Status Draft PolicyStat ID 13252737 

Approved N/A 

Review Due N/A 

Document 
Area 

General - 
Housewide 

Reg. 
Standards 

TJC NPSG 
16.01.01 

Health Equity Plan 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE 

Definitions 
I. Health care disparities – Preventable differences in the burden of disease, injury, violence, or 

opportunities to achieve optimal health that are experienced by socially disadvantaged 
populations. 

II. Health equity – A state in which every person can achieve their full health potential, and in 
which no person is prevented from achieving this potential because of socially-determined 
circumstances. 

III. Health-related social needs (HRSNs) – Health-harming conditions often identified as root 
causes of disparities in health outcomes. 

Responsibilities and Reporting Structure 

I. Establishing the processes by which the Hospital addresses health care disparities 

II. Naming a health care equity leader(s) to lead the Hospital’s health care equity initiatives 

III. Maintaining and implementing this plan and its associated policies and procedures 

Consistent with MHSC's mission, vision, and values this plan establishes the parameters of the 
Hospital’s efforts to promote health care equity by addressing disparities in health care. This plan 
addresses guidelines for identifying, analyzing, addressing, and monitoring disparities in health care 
among the patient populations served by the Hospital; to minimize inequities; and to increase quality and 
safety in an equitable fashion for all patients. 

Leadership is responsible for the following: 

The Heath Equity Team is chaired by the Chief Clinical Officer and Director of Quality. Please see 
attached Health Equity Charter for membership and further details. 

Health Equity Plan. Retrieved 08/2023. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13252737/. Copyright

© 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 1 of 6

24/136



DRAFT

I. Plans, organizes, and leads all activities related to the Hospital’s health care equity initiatives, 
including but not limited to the following: 

A. Assessing patients’ health-related social needs (HRSNs) 

B.  Identifying health care disparities in its patient population 

C. Responding to identified health care disparities through written action plans 

II. Monitors performance related to health care equity action plans and responding when goal(s) 
are not met or sustained 

III. Identifies internal and external stakeholders to serve as resources and partners in the health 
care equity program and its activities, including but not limited to the following: 

A. Hospital leaders, managers, and staff members 

B. Relevant community organizations 

C. Relevant government agencies 

IV. Communicates with internal and external partners and stakeholders about the health care 
equity program and its activities and progress in reducing identified health care disparities, as 
appropriate. 

Objectives 
I. To establish and refine processes for the following: 

A. Collecting information about patients’ HRSNs 

B. Providing patients with information about internal and external resources and 
support services that address their HRSNs 

C. Identifying health care disparities in the Hospital’s patient population 

D. Development of not less than one written action plan to address identified health 
care disparities 

II. To describe processes and expectations for orientation and education, performance 
monitoring, and annual evaluation of this plan and its related policies and procedures. 

Processes 
I. Collecting Patient HRSNs Information 

A. To identify health care disparities with the goal of reducing or eliminating those 
disparities, the Hospital must identify who its patients are, what HRSNs they have, 
and what obstacles they face in accessing care. This is accomplished by collecting 
information about their HRSNs. This process is ongoing, as relevant factors change 
frequently in response to social, economic, environmental, organizational, and 
individual changes. The goal is to connect patients with existing services and inform 
the Hospital’s health care equity initiatives. 

B. The health care equity team performs the following activities: 

The health care equity team does the following: 

Health Equity Plan. Retrieved 08/2023. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13252737/. Copyright

© 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 2 of 6

25/136



DRAFT

1. Determines the HRSNs for which patient information will be collected. 
These might include but are not limited to the following: 

a. Access to transportation 

b. Difficulty paying for prescriptions or medical bills 

c. Education and literacy 

d. Food insecurity 

e. Housing insecurity 

f. Access to child care 

2. Determines whether the HRSNs will be collected for all the Hospital’s 
patients or for a representative sample of the Hospital’s patients. 

3. Creates standardized forms (paper, electronic, or a combination of the 
two) for collecting identified HRSNs information. 

4. Establish and standardize training and competencies for collection of 
HRSNs information for staff who participate in patient admission and/or 
assessment 

5. Seeks input and feedback on quality of HRSNs information collection 
processes from staff members, patients, community partners, and other 
stakeholders. 

6. Considers this input and feedback when evaluating the relevance and 
effectiveness of HRSNs information collection processes. 

II. Connecting Patients with Services and Support 

A. The Hospital provides patients with information about relevant services and support 
programs that are available to address their identified HRSNs. 

1. The health care equity team performs the following activities: 

a. Identifies existing internal programs and services that are 
available to help address patients’ HRSNs. 

b. Identifies existing partnerships with community-based 
organizations, programs, and government agencies that are 
available to help address identified HRSNs. 

c. Maintains a list of identified programs and services, including 
current contact information and other relevant details, as 
applicable (MHSC Resource Book) 

d. Reviews the list periodically and updates it when necessary to 
reflect changes and ensure its accuracy. 

e. Ensures that all relevant staff members have access to the list 
and are educated and trained on connecting patients with 
available services or programs, when necessary, based on their 
assessed HRSNs. 

i. The MHSC Resource Book is located on PolicyStat. 

Health Equity Plan. Retrieved 08/2023. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13252737/. Copyright

© 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 3 of 6

26/136



DRAFT

III. Identifying and Addressing Disparities 

A. Collected patient demographic data should be used in conjunction with the 
organization’s quality and safety data to identify health care disparities among the 
various populations the Hospital serves. To identify health care disparities and 
understand which processes and outcomes vary in the populations served, the 
Hospital should compare the quality and safety metrics for various demographic 
groups. The Hospital may focus on areas with known disparities, as identified in 
evidence-based literature, or it may select measures that affect all its patients. Once 
disparities are identified, the Hospital should determine which ones to address and 
create not less than one written action plan to do so. 

B. The health care equity team performs the following activities: 

1. Determines the demographic characteristics to be used during analysis of 
HRSNs information. These characteristics may include but are not limited 
to the following: 

a. Age 

b. Race and ethnicity 

c. Preferred language 

C. Compares quality and safety data, including health outcomes when appropriate, for 
various demographic categories 

D. Identifies disparities in quality, safety, and/or health outcomes among the identified 
demographic groups 

E. Determines which disparities to address with a written action plan(s) 

F. Develops not less than one written action plan that describes how the Hospital will 
address at least one identified disparity. 

G. Performs evaluation activities related to the action plan(s), as described in the action 
plan(s). These include but are not limited to the following: 

1. Collecting and analyzing relevant data 

2. Evaluating the effectiveness of the action(s) in reducing the identified 
disparity 

3. Determining whether additional or different action(s) are necessary to 
address the identified disparity 

4. Revising the action plan(s) as necessary 

a. Reports on outcomes of action plan(s) to relevant stakeholders, 
including but not limited to the following: 

i. Hospital leadership 

ii. Hospital representatives for safety, performance 
improvement, community relations, and other groups 

5. Reports at least annually on the Hospital’s progress to reduce health care 
disparities to key stakeholders, including but not limited to the following: 

Health Equity Plan. Retrieved 08/2023. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13252737/. Copyright

© 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 4 of 6

27/136



DRAFT

Attachments 

a. Leadership 

b. Licensed practitioners 

c. Staff members 

IV. Orientation and Education 

A. The Health Equity team is tasked with developing new staff member orientation and 
job specific training, along with annual education relative to cultural sensitivity and 
health equity. The information provided will vary depending on the individual’s job 
duties and responsibilities. 

V. Performance Monitoring 

A. The health care equity team oversees development of appropriate performance 
monitors for the Hospital’s health care equity initiatives. The committee collects and 
documents data for the identified performance monitors and reports to leadership 
and, as appropriate, leaders of identified community partners and stakeholders. 

VI. Annual Evaluation 

A. The health care equity leader(s) evaluates the Hospital’s health care equity initiatives 
and this plan, including efficacy, continued relevance, and potential areas for 
improvement. This evaluation process occurs at the following times: 

1. At least annually 

2.  When there are changes to the Hospital, its services, or its policies and 
procedures that could impact equitable provision of care 

3. When there are changes to the community or patient population that could 
impact equitable provision of care 

B. The results of this evaluation are reported to Hospital leadership, Board of Trustees, 
and other relevant stakeholders, as applicable 

REFERENCES 

Reviewed and Approved: 

The Joint Commission. (2023, Jan). Plan for improving health care equity. PolicySource hospital and 
critical access hospital. PolicySource: P&Ps for Compliance with Joint Commission Requirements | Joint 
Commission Resources (jcrinc.com) 

Health Equity Team: March 28th, 2023 

Medical Executive Committee: June 27th, 2023 

Quality Committee of the Board: July 19th, 2023 

Health Equity Plan. Retrieved 08/2023. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13252737/. Copyright

© 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 5 of 6

28/136



DRAFT

Healthcare Equity Charter.docx 

Approval Signatures 

Step Description Approver Date 

Health Equity Plan. Retrieved 08/2023. Official copy at http://sweetwatermemorial.policystat.com/policy/13252737/. Copyright

© 2023 Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County
Page 6 of 6

29/136



 

ORIENTATION MEMO 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Date: September 6th, 2023   
 
Topic for Old & New Business Items:  FY 2024 PIPS Priorities   
 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

 _____  Revision 
 __X__  New 
 
Brief Senior Leadership Comments:  Utilized the PI Project Decision Checklist to prioritize 

and select FY 2024 PI projects. The scope of the medication project was narrowed to 
medication history updates for ED and outpatient clinics. Medication History timelines and 
target goals updated on document. Created additional project under Patient Experience and 
extended timeline for development of Patient Experience strategic plan. Team utilized 
resources and tools available from Press Ganey to set target and stretch goals. From 2021 to 
2022, the top 10% of hospitals who use Press Ganey saw an average improvement of 2.45 
percentage points. Approved by PIPS Committee and MEC. Irene Richardson, CEO and Kari 
Quickenden, CCO   
 

 Board Committee Action:  
Approved by Quality Committee of the Board  
 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

     ______   For Review Only 
 ___X__   For Board Action  
 
Legal Counsel Review: 

 __N/A__ In House Comments: 
 __N/A___ Board  Comments: 
 
Senior Leadership Recommendation: 
Recommendation for approval. Irene Richardson, CEO and Kari Quickenden, CCO 

30/136



Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County  
Performance Improvement and Patient Safety Priorities  

Fiscal Year 2024 
 

A Quality and Patient Safety Work Product:  Privileged and Confidential 

 

I. FY 2024 Priorities  

2024 Priorities 
Measurement/ 

Metric 
Baseline 

Benchmark/ 
Goals 

AIM Statement & 
SMART Objective 

 

Financial Performance 
 
 
 
Responsibility  
Chief Financial Officer  
 
Oversight Committee 
Finance and Audit 

Reporting Frequency: Monthly 
 
 
Financial Performance Team 
Members  
- All Leadership 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Outcome Metric: 
Operating margin 
 
Process Metrics:  
Revenue Cycle KPIs 
 
Monthly Variance 
Reviews 
 
Monitor Productivity 
and Staffing 
 

 
 

 
 
 

FY 2023 
 

-5.5% operating margin 
 
 

 
 
 

Benchmark: 
0.10% operating 

margin  
 
 

Target Goal:  
0.03% operating 

margin 
 
 

 
 
 

AIM Statement  
By June 30th, 2024, MHSC will 
implement measures to improve 
Financial Performance to achieve a 
0.03% operating margin (per the 
approved FY 2024 budget).  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Patient Experience #1 
 
Responsibility 
- All staff 
 
 
Oversight Committee  
PIPS Committee 
Reporting Frequency: Quarterly 
 
*Current improvement projects 
continue  
 
 
Patient Experience Team 
Members  

Senior Leadership 
Patient Experience Coordinator  
Quality Analyst 
Director of Quality  
Additional members to be 
determined. 

 
 
 
Outcome Metric:  
Degree All Staff 
Showed Compassion  
  
 
Process Metric: 
Services Standards, 
Values & Associated 
Behavior Focused 
Initiatives Quarterly  
 
Sharing the Data via 
Visual Management 
Boards 
 
Formal Recognition & 
Celebrate Successes 
& Wins 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Inpatient HCAHPS 
OB, MedSurg, ICU  

 
Top Box Answer of “Very Good” 

 
FY 2021  

276 surveys 
65.22% 19th percentile  

 
FY 2022 

259 surveys 
65.25% 21st percentile  

 
FY 2023  

256 surveys 
67.97% 36th percentile 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Target Goal: 71% 

 
Stretch Goal: 76% 

 
 
 
 

*Change across PG 

organizations utilizing 

this question increased 

by 0.84% on average 
when comparing FY 

2021 to FY 2022  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
AIM Statement  
By June 30th, 2024, MHSC will 
demonstrate continual 
improvement in degree all staff 
showed compassion each fiscal 
quarter toward the target goal 
with the last fiscal quarter 
exceeding the target goal to 
improve patient experience at 
MHSC. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

31/136



Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County  
Performance Improvement and Patient Safety Priorities  

Fiscal Year 2024 

A Quality and Patient Safety Work Product:  Privileged and Confidential 2 

2024 Priorities 
Measurement/ 

Metric 
Baseline 

Benchmark/ 
Goals 

AIM Statement & 
SMART Objective 

Patient Experience #2  
 
Responsibility 
Senior Leadership 
Patient Experience Coordinator  
 
 
 
Oversight Committee  
PIPS Committee 
Reporting Frequency: Quarterly 
 
*Current improvement projects 
continue  
 
 
Patient Experience Team 
Members  

Stated above. Additional 
members to be determined. 
 

 
 
Met/Not Met 
 
 
 

 
 

N/A  
 
 
 

 
 

N/A  

 
 
AIM Statement 
By June 30th, 2024, MHSC will 
design a three-year patient 
experience strategic plan to 
improve patient experience at 
MHSC. 

 

Medication History – A list 

of a patient’s medications, both 
prescribed and over the counter, 
that helps to identify potential 
drug interactions or adverse 

effects. 
 
Improve medication history in 
emergency department and 
outpatient clinics. 
 
 
Responsibility  
Director of Pharmacy 
 
 
Oversight Committee  

PIPS Committee 
Reporting Frequency: Monthly 
 
 
Medication Lists Work Group 
- Chief Nursing Officer 
- Chief Clinical Officer 
- Director of Pharmacy 

 
 
% visits with 
Medication History 
Completed 
 
 
 

 
 

 

 
 

DA2 Medication History – July 
2022 to June 2023 

 
ED 

Med Hx % 
47% 

 
 

Clinics 
Med Hx % 

31% 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Med Hx% 
Target Goal: 75% 
Stretch Goal: 90% 

 

 
AIM Statement 
By January 31st, 2024, the 
medication safety workgroup will 
implement measures to improve 
the medication history 
documentation and demonstrate 
continual improvement each 
month, with the last three months 
exceeding the 75% target goal. 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 

32/136



Memorial Hospital of Sweetwater County  
Performance Improvement and Patient Safety Priorities  

Fiscal Year 2024 

A Quality and Patient Safety Work Product:  Privileged and Confidential 3 

2024 Priorities 
Measurement/ 

Metric 
Baseline 

Benchmark/ 
Goals 

AIM Statement & 
SMART Objective 

- Director of Emergency 
Department 

- Clinical Coordinator for 
Emergency Department 

- Director of Dialysis 
- Directors of Oncology 
- Director of Education  
- Director of Medical Office 

Building 
- Clinical Coordinator for Medical 

Office Building 
- Practice Coordinator 
- Cerner SMEs and Super Users 

(frontline staff) 
- Informatics 
- Physician Champion 

**Additional project teams may be added as necessary.   

33/136



 

ORIENTATION MEMO 
 

 
 

Board Meeting Date: September 6, 2023  
 
Topic for Old & New Business Items: CEO Evaluation Principles & Procedure, 8/21 and 

CEO Evaluation Policy, 3/22. 

 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

 _NA_____ Revision 
 ___NA___ New 
Both policies for discussion have been approved by Board. See Comments 
 
Brief Senior Leadership Comments: NA 
 
 
Board Committee Action: The Governance Committee discovered two policies in Policystat 

regarding the policy and procedures for CEO evaluation. The CEO Evaluation Policy, approved 
3/22, reflects the current procedure. The Committee assumes that the policy dated 3/22 
supersedes the policy dated 8/21.  Both policies are brought forward with the recommendation 
that 8/21 policy be retired and be archived. 

 
 
Policy or Other Document: 

     _______ For Review Only 
 __X_____ For Board Action 
 
Legal Counsel Review: 

 _NA______ In House Comments: 
 __NA_____ Board  Comments: 
 
Senior Leadership Recommendation: CEO is member of Governance Committee 
and is in accord with the recommendation. 

34/136



35/136



36/136



37/136



38/136



39/136



40/136



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Human Resources Committee Meeting Minutes - Draft 
Monday – August 21, 2023 
Zoom 
 
Trustee Members Present by Zoom: Kandi Pendleton, Craig Rood, Barbara Sowada 
Voting Members Present by Zoom: Amber Fisk, Irene Richardson 
Non-Voting Members & Guests Present by Zoom: Amy Lucy, Shawn Bazzanella, Ruthann Wolfe, Eddie 
Boggs, Cindy Nelson 
 
 
Kandi called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. and welcomed everyone.   
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

The motion to approve the agenda as presented was made by Craig, second by Amber. Motion carried. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 

The motion to approve the July minutes was made by Amber, second by Kandi. Motion carried.    
 
ROUTINE REPORTS 
 

Turnover 
 

Amber said the two top reasons listed for turnover are resignation and job abandonment. She said the 
rate is 17% which is pretty astounding with our typical rate being 20-23%. The national rate according to 
Becker’s is 26%. Amber said we did a wage analysis for EVS and did increase their ranges in July. We are 
working on updating the job opening information online and trying to make it easier to apply. Amber 
said we complete an annual benefit summary and our benefits are very rich so we try to highlight that in 
the hiring process.  
 
Open Positions  
 
Amy reported we have 56 open positions: 26 full-time, 5 part-time, 5 PRN. She said we have 15 FT RN 
openings. Amber said our fully staffed number hovers around 600 FTE’s. The Committee discussed how 
we cover open positions. Craig asked if we have a report that shows how long a position has been open. 
Amy said we do and she will include that information in next month’s meeting packet. Kandi said it may 
be worth spending time on review of that information at the next meeting.  
 
Contract Staffing 
 
Kandi asked for a chart for the next meeting covering January – September for a look at how we have 
trended down with contract staff.  
 
Employee Injury & Illness Reporting  
 
Amber said she will bring the information to the September meeting.  
 
Old Business 
None.  
 
  

41/136



 

Minutes of the August 21, 2023 Human Resources Committee 
Page 2 

New Business 
 
None. 
 
Next Meeting 
 
The next meeting is scheduled for Monday, September 18 at 3:00 p.m. 
 
Kandi asked if the packet could come out sooner if possible. Amber said she would make that happen.  
 
The meeting adjourned at 3:31 p.m. 

42/136



43/136



44/136



45/136



46/136



47/136



48/136



49/136



50/136



51/136



52/136



53/136



54/136



55/136



56/136



57/136



58/136



59/136



60/136



61/136



62/136



63/136



64/136



65/136



66/136



67/136



68/136



69/136



70/136



71/136



72/136



73/136



74/136



75/136



76/136



77/136



78/136



79/136



80/136



81/136



82/136



83/136



84/136



85/136



86/136



87/136



88/136



89/136



90/136



91/136



92/136



93/136



94/136



95/136



96/136



97/136



98/136



99/136



100/136



101/136



102/136



103/136



104/136



105/136



106/136



107/136



108/136



109/136



110/136



111/136



112/136



113/136



114/136



115/136



116/136



117/136



118/136



119/136



120/136



121/136



122/136



123/136



124/136



125/136



126/136



MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Board of Trustees 
From:  Wm. Marty Kelsey 
Subject: Chair’s Report…August Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 
Date:  August 23, 2023 
 
Oncology Suite Renovation…A. Pleasant Construction has not started work yet…should be on 
site sometime in September. 
 
Building Automation System…Harris still needs to balance the system. 
 
Bulk Oxygen Project…Concrete and asphalt work should be completed by the end of August. 
The new equipment should be installed by mid-September and the project should be 
completed by the end of September. 
 
Lightning Arrest System…Some work has commenced. Contractor still waiting on supplies. No 
schedule yet for completion of the work due to supply chain issues. 
 
Medical Imaging Core and X-Ray…Tami indicated that the work on this project needs to be 
underway soon as the existing equipment will not be serviced much longer. Plan One needs to 
get the plans completed. 
 
Laboratory Renovation Project…Discussion took place regarding the CMAR selection process. I 
urged the staff to work toward having a recommendation for a CMAR to be presented at the 
October Board meeting. There are not many firms capable of doing this work and there are lots 
of local and other projects in the state in the design phase. Plan One is working hard on the 
plans. 
 
Foundation Area Project…Irene indicated that the staff is working on determining options for 
use of that space. Discussion of a Master Plan took place. 
 
University of Utah MOB Project…The state has approved the project. Staff is working on options 
for the completion of this work. 
 
MOB Entrance Project…Irene indicated that staff is working on determining where this project 
fits in the priority listing of the Hospital. 
 
Central Scheduling Project…Construction should commence just after mid-August. 
 
Master Plan…Irene indicated that the Hospital is considering contracting for a Master Plan for 
the Hospital. 
 

127/136



County Maintenance Fund…Discussion occurred regarding carryover and use of county 
maintenance funds. It appears funds can be carried over and that they can be used for capital 
projects as well as maintenance projects. Irene indicated she would be in favor of building up 
funds over time for Hospital projects. 
 
Building and Grounds Charter…it was determined that no changes to the charter are needed. 

128/136



 

MEMORIAL HOSPITAL OF SWEETWATER COUNTY 
Building and Grounds Committee Meeting 

August 15, 2023 

 
 

The Building and Grounds Committee met in regular session via Zoom on August 15, 2023, 

at 2:30 pm with Mr. Marty Kelsey presiding. 

 

In Attendance:  Mr. Marty Kelsey, Trustee - Chair 

   Ms. Irene Richardson, CEO 

   Ms. Tami Love, CFO 

Mr. James Horan, Director of Facilities 

Mr. Gerry Johnston, Facilities Supervisor/Project Manager 

Mr. Will Wheatley, PlanOne Architects 

    

Absent:  Mr. Craig Rood, Trustee 

 

Mr. Kelsey called the meeting to order. 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked for a motion to approve the agenda.  Ms. Richardson made a motion to approve 

the agenda.  Ms. Love seconded; motion passed. 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked for a motion to approve the minutes from the July 24, 2023, meeting. Ms. 

Richardson made a motion to approve the minutes.  Mr.  Horan seconded; motion passed.  

 

 

Maintenance Metrics 

 

Mr. Johnston presented the metrics for July 2023.  He said they are staying even with work orders 

opened and completed during the month.  He can see where the average days to complete is 

increasing and will look into.  Mr. Kelsey commented there are a lot of work orders every month.  

Mr. Johnston said this also includes all of their scheduled PM’s each month. 

 

 

Old Business – Project Review 

 

Oncology Suite renovation 

 

Mr. Wheatley said they have not started yet.  The contractor, A Pleasant Construction, is waiting 

on final subcontractor submittals and wants to wait for all material and labor to be onsite prior to 

starting.  This will minimize any downtime in Medical Oncology.  They have seen delayed starts 

on other local projects with the same subcontractors and now there is a domino effect with delays 

due to limited labor available in our area. 
  

Building Automation System 

 

Mr. Johnston said they need to have a conversation with Harris regarding the balancing of the 

entire building now that they are close to completion.  They were onsite today replacing faulty 

CRC’s. 

 

 

129/136



 

 

Minutes of the August 15, 2023, Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 2 

Bulk Oxygen  

 

Mr. Johnston said there was a delay with the concrete for spill pads and valley drain pans, but these 

should be completed this week.  They plan to start asphalt work next week.  The new equipment 

is scheduled to be set up on September 11.  Mr. Kelsey asked if the DEQ signed off on the water 

project.  Mr. Johnston said he will confirm with the contractor.  The project should be completed 

by the 3rd week of September. 

 

Lightning Arrest System 

 

Mr. Johnston said WyoElectric was here last week mobilizing.  They plan to start on the 

outbuildings first, Building A, B & C, as they wait for the delayed supplies for the Hospital.  Once 

the outer buildings are complete, they will start on the main hospital building. 

 

Medical Imaging Core and X-ray 

 

Ms. Love said we need to expedite the planning on this one as we have received several End of 

Service/End of Life letters on the existing equipment.  We would like to be able to replace the 

equipment in conjunction with the remodel.  Mr. Wheatley said there has been some progress on 

fit testing for equipment in the rooms.  He will continue to work with the equipment vendor over 

the next couple of weeks. 

 

Laboratory Renovation 

 

Mr. Wheatley said the DD phase is at the 60% completion and he sent those to the staff.  He has 

set an internal deadline for the 95% set for next week.  He would like to have the CMAR chosen 

by the end of August to help in the finalizing preconstruction services and then have GMP by the 

end of the year.  He plans to have the request for proposal for the CMAR by the end of August, 

with selection in September and ready to go in October.  There was discussion on what the SLIB 

requirements are for CMAR and all documentation of the selection process will be sent to SLIB 

for their records.  Mr. Kelsey asked if we could have the CMAR selection for Board approval at 

the October 4 meeting.  There was also discussion about having a special Board meeting in October 

if we miss that deadline.  Mr. Kelsey also asked that subcontractor bids be open to get more 

transparency.  This committee would be included in the CMAR scoring and selection.  There was 

shared concern regarding an estimated $20 million in parallel projects all vying for contractors in 

Sweetwater County.  It was decided we would push for CMAR selection in October.  Mr. Wheatley 

will put together the bid advertising documents and a timeline. 

 

Capital Construction Grant for Foundation Area 

 

Ms. Richardson said we are still looking at the best options for this space.  We have been discussing 

this area in conjunction with starting work on the new Master Plan. 

 

University of Utah MOB Space 

 

Mr. Johnston has received notice of State approval.  The project is now pending city approval for 

the electrical portion.  We will then look at how the project will be completed, either through bids 

or in-house or a combination of both. 

130/136



 

 

Minutes of the August 15, 2023, Building & Grounds Committee 

Page 3 

 

MOB SLIB Entrance 

 

Ms. Richardson said this area is also being discussed in conjunction with the Master Plan.  We 

will need to look at priorities and available funds as this project has no outside matching funds. 

 

Central Scheduling Space 

 

Mr. Johnston said the contractors are onsite this week prepping the area for infection control 

requirements and will start the project on Monday, August 21.  The PCRA and ICHRA plans are 

created and ready for the project to start. 

 

Master Plan 

 

Ms. Richardson said they are waiting on the presentation and proposal from the architect firm so 

we can start looking at a new Master Plan. 

 

County Maintenance Fund 

 

Ms. Richardson shared Geoff Philips’ thoughts that the state statute encourages us to hold funds 

for maintenance projects.  She has spoken to both Robb Slaughter and Taylor Jones, 

Commissioners, about the possibility of carrying over the funds for larger projects.  Once the 

current MOU is finalized for the current year’s funding, we can talk to the Commissioners about 

how we can do this. There was discussion on the difference between maintenance and capital 

construction and there isn’t a delineation in the statute, and we would like to be able to build up a 

maintenance fund of $6-7 million for these projects. 

 

 

New Business 

 

Mr. Kelsey presented the current Building and Grounds Committee charter for review.  The 

Committee did not see where any changes were needed.  Mr. Kelsey will let Barbara Sowada know 

it has been reviewed and no Board action is needed. 

 

Other Business 

 

Mr. Kelsey asked that we work hard to get the CMAR selection to the Board meeting on October 

4.  He said there are only 2 or 3 firms in the state that can tackle this size of project. 

 

The next meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, September 19, 2023, at 2:30 pm.   

 

Mr. Kelsey adjourned the meeting at 3:11 pm. 
 

 

Submitted by Tami Love 

131/136



 

Minutes 

Governance Meeting 

August 21, 2023 
 

Attendees: Marty Kelsey, Barbara Sowada, and Irene Richardson 

Call to Order: Irene Richardson called the Zoom meeting to order at 2:00 pm 

Agenda was approved as written  

Minutes had been previously approved 

OLD Business 

1 Executive Compensation Policy: Reviewed recommendation by Geoff Phillips, Board 

Counsel, to not go forward with the policy because it encumbers future Boards, which is 

against state statute. Action: Barbara will announce at the September Board meeting that 

the Governance Committee is removing the policy from further considerations based on Mr. 

Phillips recommendations.  

2.   Expansion and New Service Line Policy. Pros and cons of policy discussed. Agreed on 

need to simplify. Action: to be reviewed at September Governance meeting. 

3.   Update, if any re Governance Committee charter: Charter reviewed and revised. Action: 

Revised charter to be reviewed again at September Governance meeting. 

Revisions include 

a. Delete Report-- Annual board education plan. 
b. Delete Statement regarding assists senior leadership with new Board orientation.  

c. Delete Statement-- Develops, maintains, and updates any written document (aside from 

bylaws, committee charters, and Board policies) which describe the role, duties and 

responsibilities of the Board as a whole, and its officers and members. Any document (and 

changes there to) shall be approved by the Board. 

d. Rewrite conflict of interest policy 

 
NEW Business 

1.Filling VP vacancy: Discussion have until October Board meeting to fill vacancy. Several members     

have volunteered. Options are being considered. 

2. Two policies in Policystat re CEO evaluation: CEO Evaluation Principles & Procedure, 8/21 and CEO 

Evaluation Policy, 3/22. Discussion suggested that the later replaced the former. Policy dated 3/22 

reflects the evaluation process the Board is using. Action: Bring both policies to September Board 

meeting with recommendation that 8/21 policy be retired. 

3.  Begin planning for Board assessment survey in December. Action: Will use TGI survey again. 

Barbara will work with Cindy to initiate process. 

132/136



 

4. Board workshop: Melissa Martin will present the DiSC tool at a workshop for the Board on Friday, 

August, 25, 2023. 

5. Suggested BOT education for September. Marty recommended the Finance Department presents 

a program about the relevance and significance of the Clinical Statistics financial report and compare and 

contrast MHSC data with MGMA percentiles. Action: presentation planned for October Board meeting. 

Iprotean or other offering will be the September education event. 

Next meeting will be Monday September 18th at 2:00 pm by Zoom. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

Barbara J. Sowada, Ph.D. 

 

133/136



134/136



135/136



136/136


	Agenda - September 6 2023 Mtg
	Mission and Vision
	Minutes for August 2 2023 Draft
	Minutes for August 14 2023 Special Meeting Draft
	Minutes for August 25 2023 Special Workship Meeting Draft
	Orientation Memo Success Talent Management September 2023
	BOT - Senior Leadership Plan- Filling CEO Absences & Vacancies- Filling Senior Leader Absences & Vacancies- Identifying & Developing Internal Senior Leaders-Draft
	Success Talent Management Plan Senior Leader Plan Former
	Board Orientation Memo Template 2023 - Health Equity Plan September
	Health Equity Plan-Draft
	Orientation Memo Template 2023 - FY 2024 PIPS Priorities September
	FY 2024 PIPS Priorities Updated
	Board Orientation Memo Template for CEO evaluation policies
	CEO Evaluation Principles and Procedures 8_21
	CEO Evaluation Policy 3_22
	Human Resources Committee
	Capital Expenditure Requests
	Information Technology Report
	Finance & Audit Committee Meeting Info for Sept 2023
	AUGUST POTENTIAL BAD DEBT REPORT TO FINANCE
	AUGUST SELF PAY PLAN REPORT
	Building and Grounds...Chair&apos;s Report...August 2023 Marty Kelsey
	Building and Grounds Comm Minutes August 15 2023 Draft Tami Love
	Governance Committee
	Wolters Kluwer UpToDate Provider E-Library

